


Phillipsburg Airport Board Minutes
945 2nd Street
6-14-22

Call to Order	5:30pm 

Roll Call  	Present -Terry McConnell, Cassie Dewitt, Kevin Morgan, Jay Mulder, Bret Miles,  Angie Wells, Max Dibble, Ron Jansonius, Tim Ellenberger, Brad Lare, Tiffini Gross, and Timothy Driggs 

Absent- Doyle Boyle, Roger VanLoenen
Changes to
The Agenda 	none

Installment Of
New Members
	Driggs introduced the new board member Jay Mulder.  Tiffini Gross swore in all members of the Airport Board present.  Members signed oath of office and code of ethics.

Project 
Updates	Driggs provided a detailed overview and update on the Runway expansion project.  95% plans have been completed and are under review from KDOT, FAA, and City of Phillipsburg staff.    Bids are anticipated to take place in August.  Driggs provided information on the funding for this project as well as the FAA regulations.   Driggs provided documentation from KDOT with the Notice to Proceed.  Driggs also provided the board members with copies of the funding contracts for construction in the amount of $1,557,000 with KDOT.   Driggs presented the AIP Sponsor guide regulations for Airport Planning.  These regulations are highlighted to show the requirements of the airport and for the RPZ zone.  Driggs also provided an email from Jason Knipp (FAA Planner) where he indicated that the FAA will not fund other airport projects until these problem obstacles are mitigated.  Driggs provided an aerial map given by the FAA that indicates what obstacles require mitigation. This map was also shown on the large screen monitor as well.  Driggs highlighted the power lines to the south of runway as well as the items on the north side of the runway which includes Santa Fe Road.   Mulder provided some additional information about insurance requirements and why the 5,000 feet is so crucial.  Driggs spoke at length about the process of annexation and closing of Santa Fe Road.

	Driggs opened up the floor for questions from the Board and members of the public.  Mulder inquired about what the requirements for the instrument approach would be.  Driggs indicated that the study has been developed and is in the FAA hands for review and comments.  Mulder asked to make the lowest possible minimum level be considered.    Driggs indicated that is what is being considered.   Mulder inquired about the obstructions and how they would be mitigated.  Driggs indicated that all obstructions on the north will be mitigated with the extension project.  Most obstruction to the south are scheduled to be mitigated as well.  Mulder asked about the displaced threshold area and what it would be used for.  Driggs indicated that the design team is still working on this.   Driggs indicated that he hopes to leave all existing pavement there and usable to the extent that is allowed by FAA.   Dibble inquired if the airport was currently out of compliance.    Driggs explained the current RPZ is not in compliance.  Dibble argued that he spoke with Jason Knipp where he indicated that the airport was not in violation.  Driggs indicated that the approved ALP from FAA indicates the Existing RPZ does not comply with regulations.  Dibble asked as to why we are getting conflicting information.    Driggs asked what information do you feel is conflicting.  Dibble stated that in one of the first meetings he attended that this project was all about Economic Development and the information provided to him and KDOT was that Jim Bob was going to bring a new business and new jobs to town.  Dibble indicated that the economic development is not expected anymore.   Driggs asked Dibble if he had heard that from Mr. Morris because the city has not had conversations with Mr. Morris or his representatives that have indicated he has cancelled those plans.   The city has not had a need to reach out to Mr. Morris as the project is moving forward as expected.  Dibble expressed concern about recent annexations.  Dibble stated that he does not understand how the City feels that annexing the properties would gain the City ownership of the road.   Driggs responded that per the City’s annexation, Santa Fe Road would be inside the City of Phillipsburg boundaries and would be subject to City discretion.  Dibble requested to know who told Driggs that.  Driggs indicated that that guidance came from the City’s legal staff Mr. Hoffman.   Driggs indicated that Mr. Hoffman has discussed this with the County’s legal representative.  Driggs also stated that legal actions would not be debated in this meeting.  Per City Council guidance, if Mr. Dibble has a legal concern, it should be forwarded to Mr. Hoffman.  Dibble stated that no one can get a hold of Mr. Hoffman.  Driggs indicated that he had spoken to Mr. Hoffman twice today.   Ellenberger also voiced his concern that his attorney could not reach Mr. Hoffman.  Driggs indicated to Mr. Ellenberger that there is a number of correspondences between his attorney Mr. Dietz and Mr. Hoffman that discredits that claim from being true.  Ellenberger also stated that a number of years ago he was on the Airport Board.  Driggs indicated when a similar project was brought forth Ellenberger indeed voted in favor of the project.   Ellenberger disputes the facts of the project and as a pilot he has flown in and out of this airport since 1978 and is well aware of the problems to the south that should be mitigated first.  Driggs indicated that those issues have been mitigated and addressed in accordance with FAA guidance.   Ellenberger stated that you should really listen to some of the pilots.   Driggs indicated that they have spoke to many of the pilots at the airport and they were in agreement with this project.  Driggs indicated that Mayor Miles had also visited with those pilots and they have expressed support for the project.  Dibble stated that he had met with two pilots that were just passing through and not familiar with our airport.  One pilot was in a king air and they stated that they would not benefit from the extension.    These pilots voiced concern of a larger parking area around the fuel.  The width was the other issue they had voiced concern about.  Mulder followed up that a king air would not benefit from.  Mulder indicated that King Air’s are not the only plane flying.  Small planes may not benefit from the longer runway.  Mulder asked for clarification from Dibble as to what the issue was.  Dibble indicated the issue was the road.    Driggs indicated that the airport is not the issue for the county, the issue is the county road.  Driggs asked Dibble if that was correct.  Dibble stated that he was a little confused because when the city came to the commissioner stating that the airport is not in compliance with the county road.  Driggs asked Dibble “Didn’t you go with Munyon, Breon and myself to Topeka to meet with KDOT and legislative representative to lobby for funding for this project knowing that Santa Fe Road was an issue and would need to be rerouted or closed”?  Dibble indicated that he did and was the only one that indicated that the road was going to be a problem.  That meeting took place with Lindsay Douglas (Director KDOT) and Bob Brock (Director of Aviation KDOT).   Driggs asked Dibble “Didn’t you and your fellow commissioners sign a letter of support for this project knowing that road would be an issue”.  Dibble indicated that he did sign a letter of support however it did not state anything about Santa Fe Road.  Mulder asked Dibble for an explanation as to why the county would fight the expansion.  Dibble indicated that in the City’s Comprehensive plan it indicates that this is a collector road and it’s the main entrance into the County Dump.  Driggs asked Dibble “Did the County ever consider installing additional roads or possibly a joint venture with the city to install and safe alternate route for Santa Fe Road”?  Dibble responded that City came over and stated that the city could put an alternate road in place at no cost to the County.  Dibble was clear that the County Commission minutes did state that.  Driggs responded that it was discussed with the commissioner sand you guys shot it down.  Driggs stated you guys told us no.  Miles also indicated that to be true.    Driggs indicated to Mr. Dibble that he went to Dibble’s place with Mayor Miles on speaker phone, asking for explanation as to why the County Commissioner minutes did not reflect the discussion of the meeting.  Driggs and Miles were told that those minutes would be corrected at the next meeting.    Driggs also indicated that upon the next commission meeting, Mr. Dibble refuse to correct the minutes to represent actual discussion.   Driggs indicated that Dibble and Roth both voted in favor as long as it could be done legally.   Driggs indicated that the City has followed that to a T from day one.  Driggs stated that the city had given the County every opportunity to partner with the City on this project for economic growth of the county as well as the city.  There has never been a change from day one which is why Mr. Dibble and PCED was involved from the very beginning.  Mayor Miles also indicated that he met with Dibble personally about the possibility of the City/County completing a joint venture with in house staff to complete the road.  Miles indicated that Dibble stated it was doable until we showed up to the meeting.  Driggs indicated that the County left the City with no other option but to annex properties and close the road.   The City had to accept the grant and make a decision and without County support, the Council was left with no other option.  Miles also stated to Dibble that he and Mike James went to Dibble’s place of business and wanted to discuss the road with you and Dibble informed that he could not speak to them at the request of his attorney.    Dibble stated that was because the City Council indicated that if a person or organization were represented by legal staff for legal actions that those discussion need to be sent directly to legal staff.  Dibble was just following City Council guidance.   Driggs indicated to Dibble that was for the people who are threating legal action against the City.  The County at that time had not discussed suing the City.  There was never a reason for the County to hire an attorney to fight the City.  Driggs indicated that the County does not own property that is being affected so the county doesn’t have statute to object.
  

	 
Review of
Future projects
& CIP Plan  	Driggs provided a detailed outlook of what future projects have been discussed and submitted through the CIP program.  Replacing the AWOS was funded by the Kansas Department of Transportation KAIP program for $275,000 and is tentatively scheduled to be completed in the fall or spring of 2023.  Other projects include the relocation of the power line to the south east of the runway along the Highway 183.   Driggs indicated that this project will be funded by FAA in the next fiscal year.   Driggs also provided information on the possibility of widening the runway to 75 feet, new terminal building, parallel taxiway and the replacement of the City’s hanger.  These projects do not have funding at this time nor timelines for possible completions. 

Fuel Issue	Driggs explained that there have been some struggles lately with the fueling system.  Mulder asked about if the machine goes down, how do people get fuel.   Driggs indicated that we have staff available 24/7 to assist if needed.


Adjourn 	6:25 pm




